


Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to reporl thatfacl.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e ODbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2019 for which there were no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2019.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2019,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number: 058507

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 15, 2019



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Policybazaar
Insurance (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Referred to in paragraph 12 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registralion Number: 012754N/N500016

&
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Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number: 058507

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 15, 2019



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2019

1.

il.

1il.

(a)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year

()

iv.

V.

vi.

vil. (a)
(b)

VIIL,

X.

and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 4 on Property, plant
and equipment to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income Tax, goods and service tax, provident fund and employees’
state insurance, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including duty of customs, value added tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 31 to the financial
statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Policybazaar
Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

xiv

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 12754N/N500016

Amites
Partner

Dutta

Membership Number: 058507

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 15, 2019



Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Balance Sheet

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propenty, plant and equipment 4 2,416 30 29350
Intangible assets 5 6810 71.08
Financial assets
(i) Loans 6(a) 572 61 314,88
(ii) Other financial assets 6(f) 2125 20,75
Currenl tax assets (Net) 7 4,511.10 1,956.50
Other non-current assets 8 120.01 56,76
Total non-current asscts 7,709.37 2,713.47
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(b) - 257.81
(ii) Trade receivables 6(c) 5,569.96 3,357.86
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) 4,463.26 1,245.49
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 6(e) 426.59 25.00
(v) Loans 6(a) 15.79 13.15
(vi) Other financial assets 6() 369.04 2,128.10
Other current assets 9 579.23 110.58
Total current assects 11,423.87 7,137.99
Total assets 19,133.24 9,851.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10(a) 5,310.53 4,329.90
Other Equity
Reserves and surplus 10(b) (2,501.09) 552.50
Total equity 2,809.44 4,882.40
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 11(b) 67.55 19.57
Employee benefit obligations 12 630,87 34559
Total non-current liabilities 698.42 365.16
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11(a) 3,350 00
(ii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues ol micro and small enlerprises 11(c) 93 55 -
(b) total outstanding other than (ii) (a) above 11(c) 8,883 27 2,55622
(iii) Other linancial liabilities 11(b) 1,928 63 749 84
Employee benefit obligations 12 607 08 278 44
Other current liabilities 13 762 85 1,019.40
Total current liabilities 15,625.38 4,603.90
Total liabilities 16,323.80 4,969.06
Total equity and liabilities o 19,133.24 985146

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

This is the balance sheel referred to in our report of even dale

For Price Walterhouse Charlered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
Firpn remstration nuimbice 012750 NNS00016

]\/k Shaa,— N\’\/

Seieshe ] ki Mo Shdrin Alok Bansal 3

Partner Direclor Directon Company Secretary
Membership No : 038507 DIN : 02745526 DIN : 01653526 M No : A54397
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Dale June 15 2019 Date : June 15,2019 Date ;s June 15,2019 Date June 15,2019



Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Revenue from operations 14 31,030.87 15,831.27
Other income 15 20828 104.97
Total income 31,239.15 15,936.24
Expenscs:
Employee benefit expense 16 22,257.43 9,939.30
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 723.46 149 88
Advertising and promotion expense 18 20,724.74 3,185.05
Network, internet and other direct expense 19 2,044.53 582.08
Administration and other expense 20 6,677.04 3,022.76
Finance costs 21 12445 -
Total expenses 52,551.65 16,879.07
Profit/(Loss) before tax (21,312.50) (942.83)
Income tax expense :
Current tax = -
Deferred tax 22 -
Total tax expense W -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (21,312.50) (942.83)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations [Gain/(Loss)] 12 (84.18) (23.75)
Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprchensive income for the year, net of tax (84.18) (23.75)
Total comprehensive income for the yenr (21,396.68) (966.59)
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value per share Rs 10/- (March 31, 2018: Rs 10/-)]
Basic (in Rs.) 26 (44 61) (2.18)
Diluted (in Rs)) 26 4461) (2.18)
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Charlered Accounlants LLP ‘or and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm registration number: 012754N/N500016
| W
Amitesi™utin Manoj Sharma Alok Bansal Ruchika
Partner Direclor Direclor Company Secretary
Membership No : 058507 DIN : 02745526 DIN : 01653526 M. No. : A54397
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date : June 15,2019 Dale : June 15,2019 Date : June 15.2019 Date : June 15,2019




Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity

1) Equity share capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes Amount
As at April 1, 2017 4,329.90
Changes in equily share capital 10(a) =
As at March 31, 2018 4,329.90
Changes in equity share capital 10(a) 980.63
As at March 31, 2019 5.310.53

13 Other equity
Reserves and surplus
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Securities premium Retained earnings Group Settled share Total

Particulars Notes based payment
reserye

Balance as at April 1, 2017 8,620.10 (8,292.51) 825.55 1,153.14
(Loss) for the year 10(b) - (542 .83) - (942.83)
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - (23.75) - (23.75)
Employee share-based payment expense 16 - - 365.94 365.94
Total comprehensive income for the year - (966.58) - (966.58)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of equity shares 10(a) - - : -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 8,620.10 (9,259.09) 1,191.49 552.50
(Loss) for the year 10(b) - (21,312.50) - (21,312.50)
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - (84.18) - (84.18)
Employee share-based payment expense - - 32372 323.72
Total comprehensive income for the year - (21,396.68) - (21,396.68)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue ol equity shares 10(b) 18,019 37 - - 18,019 37
Balance as at March 31, 2019 26,639.47 (30.655.77) 1,515.21 (2,501.09)

The above statement of changes of equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles
This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

IFor Price Waterhouse Charlered Accountanls LLP For and on behal!l of the Board ol Direclors
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

M Nanw—

W\~ W

AmijtesN Dutta Manoj Sharma Alok Bansal Ituclhiki

Pariner Direclor Direclor Company Secretary
Membership No 058507 DIN : 02745526 DIN : 01653526 M No : A54397
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: June 15,2019 Date: June 15, 2019 Date: June 15,2019 Date: June 15,2019




Policybaznar lusurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Statement of cash flows

Mnr_ch 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Particulies Notes N .
{Rs. in L.akhs) {IRs. in Lakhs)
Cash Now from operating activities
(L.oss) before income tax (21,312 50) (942 83)
Adjusiments for
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 17 723 46 149 88
Property, plant and equipment wrilten ofl’ 20 430 -
Impairmenl of goodwill 20 - 121
Gain on sale of investments 15 (120 68) (5742)
Provisions for doubtful debts 6(c) 2317 3250
Unwinding of discount on securily deposils 15 41 74) (923)
Income accrued but not due 15 (553) (133)
Interest income classilied as invesling cash flow 15 (40 33) 497)
Changes in fair value of financial assets al [air value through profil or loss 15 - (577)
Finance cosls 2t 124 45 -
Employee share-based paymenl expense 25 32372 365 94
Change in operating assels and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 6(c) (2,23527) (2,814 87)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables H1(c) 6,420 60 1,070 35
(Increase) in other non-current assels 8 (63 25) (34 04)
Increase in other current financial liabilities 11(b) 1,066 79 3947
(Increase) in other current assels 9 (468 65) (41 69)
(Increase) in current tax assets 7 (5,109 20) (2,871 22)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans-current 6(a) (2 64) (578)
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assels 6(f) 1,758 56 3,114 78
Increase in employee benefit obligations 12 52974 24725
Increase in olher current liabilities 13 (269.00) 36611
{Increase) in loans-non-current 6(a) (216.02) (224 08)
Increase in other non-current financial liabililies 11({b) 4798 545
{Increase) in other bank balances 6le) (401 59 (25 1H0)
k'aﬁh antllow from operations (19,263.60) (1,645.25)
Income taxes paid 7 2,554 60 1,435 61
Mot cash outflow from opecating activities (16,709,800} (200.67)
Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4,5 (2,847 58) (411 03)
Purchase of currenl investments 6(b) (252 04)
Proceeds from sale ol currenl investment 6(b) 378 49 1057 72
5 recerved 15 45,86 0noaZ
ow/{out Tow) Trom investing neiiyvities {2,423.23) M7
Cash Mlows from financing aclivities
Proceeds from issue of equily shares {including sccurities premium) 10(a) 19,000 00
Proceeds {rom Lt l'ror_n holdin company 11 () 1,350.00
Mot cash inflow from linune 22.350.00
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,217.77 19130
Cash and cash equivalents al the besinnine of the financial yea o(d) 1,245 49 1,054 19
m ) ensh egpuivalents o ened of e v 446326 124549 _

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow siatement

Cash and cash cquivalents as per above comprise of the following :

Balances with Bank (Refer nole 6(d))
Cash on hand (Refer note 6(d))
Balunees per statement of cash Nows

March 31, 2019
{Rs. in Lakhs)

4,461 79
147
A163.26

March 31,2018
{Hs. in Luklis)

1.244 94
0355
124549

Notes:

1 ‘The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

[Ind AS -7 on "Statement of Cash IFlows"]
2 Fivures i brackets indicate cash outllow

I he above statement of cash [lows should be read in comunchion with the accompanying notes

This is the cash (low slatement referred Lo in our report of even dale

For Price Waterthouse Chartered Accountants LILP
Firm Rewiatation Memgher 112754N/NS00016

Amntesh Dutla Nt ST

Pariner
NMembership No 038507

Place Guiugram
Date lune 15 2019

[RITER
DIN 027455206

Place Gurumam
Date hune 15 2019

IFor and on behall of the Board of Directors

l\/:c.,_ Qlagi— W

Alok Bansal
Diecton
DIN 016535206

Place Guruaram
Date tune 152019

Ruchika
Company Secretany
M No o A3-397

Place Gurugiam
Date hune 13 2014




Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1: General Information

Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited (“the Company” or “Policybazaar”) is a private
limited Company incorporated on 25th September 2014 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
having its registered office at Plot no.119, Sector 44, Gurugram, Haryana. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Etechaces marketing and consulting private limited. The Company is an Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (IRDAI) licensed web aggregator having license number 6, license code
IRDA/WBA21/15, valid until 13th July 2021.

The Company received the insurance web aggregator license from IRDAI on 14th July 2015 for carrying on the
business of “Insurance Web Aggregator”. The Company operates its JRDAI approved website
www.policybazaar.com for showing online comparisons and solicitation of insurance products. It also
undertakes telemarketing and outsourcing activities for insurers as permissible under the IRDAI (Web
aggregator) Regulations, 2017.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
a. Compliance with IND AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the foliowing items:
- Certain financial assets measured at fair value;

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

- Share based payments

¢. Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the
lime between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

d. New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Company has applied the Ind AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” for the first time for

their annual reporting period commencing | April 2018. Refer note 2.1(h) for change its accounting policies
for adoption of Ind AS 115.
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e. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization
and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over the useful lives,
using the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by
the management's expert which in some cases are different as those specified by Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

The residual values of the assets are assessed to be nil. The assets' residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows:

Description Useful life -
Computers 3 years B
Furniture & Fixtures* 7 years
Office Equipment* | 3 years
Lease Hold Improvements Period of Lease or 3 years
whichever is earlier

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, useful
lives of these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013.

f. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortization period and the amortization method arc reviewed at least at each linancial year end. If the
expected useful lite of the asset is significantly different [rom previous estimates, the amortization period is




changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has software licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years.
g. Impairment of assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

h. Revenue recognition
Accounting policy applied till March 31, 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of goods and service
tax (GST).

Revenue from services: The Company recognizes revenue from web aggregator services when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s services as described below. The Company
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

1) Telemarketing services
2) Outsourcing services

3) Product Listing Services
4)  Rewards

Timing of recognition: Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

Revenue in excess of billing of web aggregator services is included as unbilled revenue in other current
financial assets.

Changecs in accounting policies:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 on March 28, 2018 which includes Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers' effective from reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2018. Effective April 1, 2018,
the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ using the modified
retrospeclive transition method, which is applied to contracts that are not completed on or before March 31,
2018. Accordingly, the comparatives have not been retrospectively restated. The Company has evaluated
and there is no impact on the linancial statements including retained earnings as at April 01, 2018 resulting
from the implementation of this standard.




No Significant judgements have been made by the company in applying Ind AS 115 that significantly affect
the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers.

Accounting policy applied from April 1, 2018

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a promised service to a customer.

Sale of services
The Company earns revenue from insurance web aggregator services as described below:

1) Telemarketing services
2) Outsourcing services

3) Product Listing Services
4) Rewards

Revenue from web aggregator services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the
terms of the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on
such services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the
balance sheet as unbilled revenue under other financial assets where the amount is recoverable from the
customer without any future performance obligation. Cash received before the services are delivered is
recognised as a contract liability, if any.

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed
until such uncertainty is resolved.

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’) i.e. Indian rupee (INR),
which is Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency (INR) using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity and Compensated
absences.
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i) Defined contribution plans

iii)

The Company’s contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered as
contribution to defined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of contributions
required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses , the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the
return on plan asset (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or
credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit and loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined liability or asset.

Short-term obligations

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the services.

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences;

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick lcave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet
as the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

v) Share-based payments

Share-based payments arc considered as 'Equity-settled share-based payment transactions' under Ind AS
102. The Company mecasures the lair value of the services received and recognises an expense in the
statement ol profit and loss with a corresponding increase in equity by reference to the fair value at the
grant date of the equily instruments granted.




Leases

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit
after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that tax profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Delerred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax assct is realised or the deferred income tax liability is scttled.




Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since
this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.
A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

- those to be measured subsequently at tair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profit and loss), and

« those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the (inancial assets and the
contractual terms ol the cash [Tows.




Initial Recognition:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

After initial measurement, [inancial assels classilied at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the income statement. On de-recognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting
date with all the changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which
the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt instruments that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in tinance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassificd from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/ (expenses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other income in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 30 details how the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from fixed deposits is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured
at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the
cffective ratc of interest.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
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statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement ol Schedule [11, unless otherwise stated.




Note 3: Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements
is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements:

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimated useful life of tangible assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant
and equipment.

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 12

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.




Note 4 : Property, plant and cquipment
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Total
Equipment Fixtures Improvements

Year ended March 31,2018
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 53.44 45.46 18.12 8.94 125.96
Additions 24218 38.69 8.10 22.65 311.62
Disposals - - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 295.62 84.15 26.22 31.59 437.58
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 15.71 11.87 5.36 2.98 35.92
Depreciation charge during the year 64.56 29.99 6.08 7.53 108.16
Disposals - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation 80.27 41.86 11.44 10.51 144.08
Net carrying amount 215.35 42.29 14.78 21.08 293.50

Year ended March 31, 2019
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 295.62 84.15 26.22 31.59 437.58
Additions 1,256.85 259.09 448.99 849.86 2,814.79
Disposals 12.43 2.55 0.38 - 15.36
Closing gross earrying amounl 154004 340.69 474.83 881.45 3,237.01
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 80.27 41.86 11.44 10.51 144.08
Depreciation charge during the year 366.12 83.19 46.80 191.58 687.69
Disposals 8.48 2.20 0.38 - 11.06
Closing accumulated depreciation 437.91 122.85 57.86 202.09 820.71
Net carrying amount 1.102.13 217.84 416.97 679.36 2.416.30
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Note 5 : Intangible assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Computer Software Goodwill Total
Year ended March 31,2018

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 16.68 1.21 17.89
Additions 99.40 - 99.40
Disposals - - -
Impairment of goodwill - (1.21) (1.21)
Closing gross carrying amount 116.08 - 116.08
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 3.28 - 3.28
Amortisation charge during the year 41.72 - 41.72
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 45.00 - 45.00
Closing net carrying amount 71.08 - 71.08
Year ended March 31, 2019

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 116.08 - 116.08
Additions 32.79 - 32.79
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 148.87 - 148.87
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 45.00 - 45.00
Amortisation charge during the year 35.77 - 35.77
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 80.77 - 80.77
Closing net carrying amount 68.10 - 68.10




Note 6 : Financial assets

Note 6 (a) : Loans

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposils

Total loans-non-current

Current

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees

Total loans - current

Note 6(b) : Current Investments

Investment in mutual funds
Quoted

Nil units { (March 31, 2018: 10,540 272 Units) in Invesco India Short
Term Fund Direct Plan Growth
Total

Total current investments

Apgrepate amount of quoted invesiments and matket value thereof
Apprepate amount of unquoted invesimenls

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of invesiments

Note 6(c) : Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for doubtlul debis
Total receivables

Curient portion

Non- Current pottion

Break-up of security getails

Tiade 1eceivables considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecined
Tiade receivables - credil impaired

Total

Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

A

4 -"-\-t‘i-l‘l_r-l aon w '-\i/
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As at
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

572.61 314 88
572.61 314.88
15.79 13.15
15.79 13.15
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

257 81

257.81

257.81

257 81

As at
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

5,656 81 342154
(86.85) (63 68)
5,569.96 3,357.86
5,569 96 3,357 86
As at As at

March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

5,569 96 3,357 86
86.85 6368
5,656.81 3,421.54
(86 85) (63 68)
5569.96  3357.86




Note 6(d) : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank
Cash on hand
Total

Note 6(e) : Other bank balances

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity with more
than three months but less than 12 months
Total

Note 6(1) : Other financial assets

Current
Unbilled revenue

Amount recoverable from Holding company for expenses

Amount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary companies for expenses (Refer note 27)

Others

Non-Current

Deposits with insurance companies
Total

Note 7 : Current tax assets (Net)

Advance income lax (net of provision Rs. Nil, March 31, 2018 Rs. Nil)
Total

Note 8 : Other non-current assets

Piepaid

-Rent

- Other expense
Total

Note 9 : Other current assets

Advance to vendors
Balance with Government Authorilies
Prepaid
- Remt
- Other expense
Others
Total

As at
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

4,461.79 1,244 94
147 0.55
4,463.26 1,245.49
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
426 59 25.00
426.59 25.00
As at As at

March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

359.22 293.59

1,754.07

- 80.44
9.82 -

369.04 2,128.10

21.25 20.75

21.25 20,75

As at
Maurch 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

4,511.10

1,956.50

4,511.10

1,956.50

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Asal
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

75 65 5676
44 36 -
120.1 56.76
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

3901
25276

126 40
155 34

572
§19.23

3517
544

2840
4024
1.33
110.58




Note 10 (a): Equity
Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
(In Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at April 01,2017 550.00 5,500.00
Increase during the year = -
As at March 31, 2018 550.00 5,500.00
Increase during the period - -
As at March 31, 2019 550.00 5.500.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital
Number of shares Amount
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at April 01, 2017 432.99 4,329.90
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2018 432.99 4,329.90
As at April 01,2018 432.99 4,329.90
Add: Shares issued during the year 98.06 980.63
As at March 31, 2019 531.05 5,310.53

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share, Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in case
of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding

(ii) Shares of the company held by holding / ultimate holding company

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(In Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (In Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (the Holding 331.05 5.310.53 432.99 4,329.90
Company) and its nominee
531.05 5,310.53 432.99 4,329.90
(iii) Detuils of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Number of shares o ) Number of shares N ;
Id
(In Lakhs) % holding (In Lakhs) % holding
Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited, the Holding 531.05 100.00% 432.99 100.00%
Company
531.05 432,99




Note 10 (b): Other equity

Reserve and surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Securities premium reserve 26,639.47 8,620.10
Retained earnings (30,655.77) (9,259.09)
Group settled share based payment reserve 1,515.21 1,191.49
Total reserves and surplus (2,501.09) 552.50

i) Securities premium reserve

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Opening balance 8,620.10 8,620.10
Additions during the year 18,019.37 -
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 26,639.47 8,620.10

ii) Retained earnings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Opening balance (9,259.09) (8,292.51)
Net (Loss) for the period (21,312.50) (942.83)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings
- R.eme.asurements of post-employment benefit (84.18) (23.75)
obligation, net of tax
Closing balance (30,655.77) (9.259.09)

iii) Group settled share based payment reserve

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Opening balance 1,191.49 825.55
Employee Stock Option Expense 323.72 365.94
Closing balance 1,515.21 1,191.49
Nature and purpose of other reserves:

a) Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in

accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act. 2013.

b) Group settled share based payment reserve

Group scttled share based payment reserve is used 1o recognise the fair value of options granted to the
employees of the Company by the Holding Company under ESOP scheme.




Note 11 : Financial liabilities

Note 11(a) : Current borrowings As at
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Unsecured
From related parties

Loan from Holding company (Refer note below) 3,462.00

Total current borrowings 3,462.00 -
Less: Interest accrued (net of TDS) [included in note 11(b)] (112.00)

Current borrowings (as per balance shect) 3,350.00

Note :

(a) The Company has borrowed unsecured loan from its holding Company (Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited).

(b) Coupor/ Interest rate : 7.5% per annum
(c) Terms of payment/maturity date : Single repayment along with interest on or before March 31, 2020

Net debt reconciliation As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 6(d)) 4,463.26 1,245 49
Current borrowings (3,350.00)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (112.00) =
Net Debt 1,001.26 1,245.49

Cash and cash Current borrowings Total
equivalents

Net debt as at April 01, 2017 1,054 19 1,054.19
Cash flows 191.30 - 191.30
Net debt as at March 31,2018 1,245.49 - 1,245.49
Cash flows 3,217.77 (3,350.00) (132.23)
Interest expense (net of TDS) - (112.00) (112.00)
Interest paid - . -
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 4,463.26 (3,462,00) 1,001.26
Note 11(b) : Other financial liabilities As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Current

Employee 1elaled payables
Lease equalisation reserve
Interest accrued (Reler nole 11(a))

Total

Non-Current

Lease equalisalion reserve
Total

Note 11(¢) : Trade payables

Current

Trade payables : micto and small enterprises (Refer nole 23)

‘Trade payables : othets

Trade payabies to 1elaled panties (Reler note 27)

Total

1,805.20 749 37
11.43 047

11200 .
N 1,928.63 749.84
6755 19.57
6155 19.57

As at
March 31,2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

9355
6,787 16 2,556 22
2,096 11
8,976.82 2,556.22




Note 12 : Employee benefit obligations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Gratuity 3352 630.87 664 .39 23.59 34559 369.18
Compensated absences 57356 - 573.56 254.85 - 254 85
Total emplovee benefit obligations HO08 630,87 1,237.95 278.44 345.59 624,03

(i) Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for eamed leaves. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are tecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise

The amount of the provision of Rs. 573.56 lakhs (March 31, 2018 — Rs. 254.85 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer seltlement for any
of these obligations. However, based on pasl experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or 1equire payment within the next 12 months. The
following amounts reflect leave that is not expected (o be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Leave oblipations not expected to be seltled within 428 49 196.81
the next 12 months

(ii) Defined contribution plans

a) Provident Fund

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at (he rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year ended Maich 31, 2019 towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 1012.06 Lakhs (March 31, 2018- Rs. 502 08 Lakhs) Refer Note
16

b) Employee Stale Insurance
The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of employee state insmance. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2019 towards defined contribution plan is Rs
359.15 Lakhs (March 31, 2018- Rs. 198,96 Lakhs) Refer Note 16

(iii) Post employment benefit plan obligations - Gratuity

The Company provides for giatuily for employees as pet the Payment of Gialuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in conlinuous service for a period of 5 yeais are eligible for gratuity. The amount
of galuity payable on ictirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The
gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and mainiains a targel level ol funding to be
maintained over a period of lime based on estimations of expected giatuity payments

a) The amounts recognized in the balance sheel and the movements in the net defined benelit obligation over (he year are as follows:

Present value Fair vatue of plan .

_— Net amount
of obligation assets

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
April 1,2017 280.28 43.52 236.76
Current setvice cosl 11020 - 110.20
Interes! expense/(income) 2172 . 21.72
Expected return on plan assels 337 (3.37)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B 131.92 3.37 128.55

Remeasurements
Return on plan assels, excluding amounts E 089 089
included in interesl expense/(income)
{GainYloss fiom change in demogiaphic .

assumplions

(Gain)Y/loss fiom change in linancial assumplions (10 33) ' (1033)

Lixperience (painsylosses 3319 - 1319
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive a o T
. 22.86 0.89 23.75
mcome
LEmployer contiibutions 1987 (19 87)
Benelil payments (11 98) (11 98) -
March 31,2018 - - 423,08 5390 369.18




Present value

Iair value of plan

of obligation assets PLCUILLG
April 1, 2018 423 08 5390 369.18
Current service cost 19297 - 192.97
Interest expense/(income) 3215 32.15
Expected retum on plan assets - 410 (4.10)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 225.12 4.10 221.02
RL’IIIL’(L\'III'L‘IIYL‘”/.Y
Relum on p!zm assets, exclud!ng amounts 0.93 0.93
included in interest expense/(income)
(Gainyloss from change in demographic .
assumptrons = r
(Gain)loss from change in financial assumptions 078 R 9.78
Experience (gains)/losses 7347 - 73.47
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive 83.25 0.93 84.18
income
Employer contributions 10.00 (10.00)
Benefit payments (17 .81) (17.81) -
March 31, 2019 713.64 49.25 664,39
b) The net liabilily disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Present value of funded obligalions 713.64 423 08
Fair value of plan assets 49.25 5390
Deficit of funded plan 664.39 369.18
Unfunded plans - -
139 36018

Deficit of gratuity plan

¢) The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Employees Gratuity Fund

March 31, 2019

Discount Rate (per annum) 7 60%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.60%
Rate of Increase in Compensation levels (p.a.) 10.00%
Attrition Rate
- 18 10 30 yeins 40 00%
- 30 (o 44 years 7 00%
- 44 to 58 years 0.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of 12 80

employees (years)

March 31, 2018
7.75%
7.75%
10.00%

40.00%
7.00%
0.00%

3230

Compensated absences

March 31, 2019
7 60%
0.00%
10 00%

40 00%
7 00%
0.00%

3280

March 31, 2018
775%
0.00%
10 00%

40.00%
7.00%
0.00%

3230

Assumplions regarding future mortality for pension are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published siatistics and experience. The discount rate assumed is delermined by 1eference
to markel yield at the balance sheet dale on government bonds The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, ptomotion and other

relevanl lactors such as demand and supply in the employment market
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d) Sensitivily analysis:
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligalion to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrexase in assumption
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 1% % -10% 11% 13% 13%
Salary growth rate 1% 1% 12% 13% -10% -11%

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumplions conslant. In praclice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as and when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. Assumptions other
than discount rate and salary growth rate are not material for the Company

¢) The major categories of plans assets are as follows:;

Funds Managed by Insurer* - 100%

*The Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation and Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited. They do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

f) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The gratuity fund is administered through

Life Insurance Corporation of India (inswer) and Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limiled (insurer) undet its group gratuity scheme. Accordingly, almost the entire plan asset investiments
is maintained by the insurer. These are subject to interest rate risk which is managed by the insurer

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plan assets maintained by the insurer. The
gratuity fund is administered through Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India & Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited under its Group Gratuity Scheme
g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of Ihe defined benefit obligation is 25 years (2018 - 25 years)
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post employment benefit plan (gratuity) is as follows

Less than Between Between Over s

Total
a year 1-2years 2 - Sycars years
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2019

Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 3331 7628 488.77 291.73 890.09
Total 33.31 76.28 488.77 291.73 890.09
March 31, 2018

Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 28 71 4512 251.79 162.55 488.17
Total 2871 45.12 251.7% 162.55 488.17




Note 13 : Other current liabilities

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source
Total

Note 14 : Revenue from operations

Web Aggregator Services (net of applicable taxes) |Also, refer note 2(i)(h)]

Telemarketing services
Qutsourcing services
Product listing services
Rewards

Total

Note 15 : Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

Income accrued but not due

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Bad debts recovered

Net pain on financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Nel gain on sale of investments

Total

Note 16 : Employec benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Less: Salary charged to Holding company*

Contributions to provident and olher funds (Refer note 12)

Compensated absences

Gratuity (Refer note 12)

Staff welfare expenses

Employee share-based payment expense {Refer note 25(b)}
Total

As at
March 31, 2019
{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31,2018
(Rs, in Lakhs)

762 85 1,019.40
762.85 1,019.40
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

13,167.07 6,481.02
15,183 91 8,190.74
9.50 3.50
267039 |, 156,01
3103087 15,831.27
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Is. in Lakhs) (Rs, in Lakhs)
4033 4.97
553 1.33
4174 923
- 2625
- 5.7
120.68 57.42
208.28 104.97
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
19,551.06 9,884 12
. 19,551.06 (1,512.15) 837197
1,371 21 701.04
42076 194 25
221.03 128,55
369 65 177.55
323.72 365.94
9,939,30

22,257.43

*As per the agreement with holding company, salary costs of Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregalor Private Limited (“the Company”) weie shared with Etechaces Marketing and Consulling
Privale Limited (“the Holding Company”), commensurate with support provided to the Holding company, by the employees of the Company Lill Maich 31, 2018. The employees of the Company
have nol provided any support to Holding company during the year, given the focus on growing its own business during the year. Thus, no salary cosls have been shared with the Holding company

during the yeat (Maich 31,2018 Rs 1,512 t5 lakhs)




Note 17 ; Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amotlisation of intangible asset
Total

Note 18 : Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertisement expenses:
Offline
Online

Less: Cosl charged to Holding company (Refer note 27)

Business promotion expenses
Total

Note 19 : Network, internet and other direct expenses

Internet and server charges
Computer and equipment rental
IT consultancy charges
Cominunication expenses
Total

Note 20 : Administration and other expenses

Electricity and water expenses {Refer note 28)
Legal and professional charges
Rent {Refer note 24 (b} & 28)
Repair and maintenance - others
Security and housekeeping expenses
Office expense
Travel and conveyance
Recruitinent expenses
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Intellectual Properly Rights (1PR) fees (Refer note 27)
Printing and stationery
Postage and courier expense
Payment lo auditors
As Audilor:
Audil fee
Tax audil fee
Olher setvices
Payment paleway chaiges
Bank charpes
Training and seminar
Provision for doubtful debts
Impairment of goodwill
Property, plant and equipment written ofT
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Note 21 : Finance costs

Interest on financial liabilities not al fair value thiough profit or loss

Year ended
March 31,2019
(Rs. in Lakhs}

Year ended
March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs)

687.69 108.16
i5.77 41.72
T23.A6 149,88
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
13,069 99 4,978.02
7,564 82 3,101 82
20,634.81 8,079.84
- 20,634 81 (4,942.73) 3,137.11
89.93 47.94
20,724.74 3,185.05
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
942.62 187.74
3,07 0.10
6.71 2.20
1,092.13 392.04
2,044.53 582.08
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
406.02 238.66
4366 46.53
1,565.05 1,000.82
206.77 20285
357.36 17927
78.07 44.85
19520 169.60
337.78 153.15
3621 65 30
70.26 42 83
1,551.54 -
60.83 32.83
2248 3765
18.52 1453
026 075
608 1.00
1,553 88 680 86
381 401
124 47 7232
23.47 3250
- 12i
430
11.32 124
6,677.04 3.022.76

Year ended
March 31, 2019
(Rs. i Laskhs)

Year ended
March 31,2018

124 45

124.45




Note 22; Tax losses and unrecognised temporary differences®

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the 1ax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deduclible

items_ It also explains significant estimales in relation to the Company’s tax position

As At As At

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Unused tax losses 7,61196 7,142 82
Other tax credits # 18515 64.24
Deductible temporary differences 1,937.17 887.30
Total 9,734.28 8,094.36
Potential tax benefit @ 26% 2,53091 2,104.53
Expiry dates for unused tax losses
- March 31,2023 18.23 18.23
- March 31, 2024 3,190,83 3,190.83
- March 31, 2025 3,933.76 3,933.76
- March 31, 2026 469.14 -

# 1t includes unabsorbed depreciation which can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

*Considering the fact that the Company has completed its fourth year of operations only and has incurred losses in current financial year, a deferred tax asset has not been recognized on deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

Note 23 : Dues to micro and small enterprises

According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers, regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the Company has amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the said Act as follows:

As At As At

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs, in Lakhs)
Principal amount due Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act remaining 9333 .
unpaid as at vear end. (Refer note 11 (¢ ))
[nterest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as 022 :
at year end
Principal amounts paid 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond 9379 2224

the appointed day during the vear

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers

registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day duting the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Acl, lo suppliers registered under the

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for .
payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

Note : * amount is below the rounding off norm followed by the Company
Note 24 : Commitments

(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contiacled for al the end of Lhe 1eporting period bul not recognised as liabilities is as follows:
As At
March 31,2019
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Property, plant and equipment 2535

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases
The Company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to five years. The leases have varying lerms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights On renewal, the icrms of leases are re-nepotiated
As At
March 31, 2019
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation (o non-cancellable
operating, leases are pavable as follows:
Wilhin one year
Later than one year bul not later than five years
Later than five yeais

94195
188 06

Year ended
March 31, 2019

o (Its in Lakhs)
1,565 05

Rental expense relating to operating leases

Total renlal expense 1elating 10 operaling leases (Refer note 20)

>

As Al
March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs)
33399

As At
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

401.25
23203

Year ended
March 31,2018

1,000 82




Note 25: Share based payments

(a)

(b)

Employee oplion plan

The Parenl company (Elechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limiled) has sel up a trust 1o administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been granted lo certain employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries Under this ESOP scheme, the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the oplions as vesled at the price specified in the grant The oplions gianted till March 31, 2019 have a vesting
penod of maximum 3 years from the date of grant

1} Summary of options granted under plan

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Average exercise price . Average exercise price Number of
per share option Number of options per share oplion oplions
(Rs.) (Rs.) "
Opening, Balance 10 3,224 10 2,601
Granled during the year 10 52 10 825
Exercised during the vear* 10 (467) 10 (115
Forfeiled/lapsed during, the year 10 (45) 10 87
Closing Balance 2,764 3,224
Vested and exercisable 1483 1479

*The weighled average share price al the date of exercise of options exercised during the vear ended March 31, 2019 was Rs 10 (March 31,2018 - Rs 10)
No oplions expired during Lhe periods covered in Lhe above tables

ii) Share options oulslanding al the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices

Share options Share oplions
Grant Grant dale Expiry dale Exercise price March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Grant | May 01, 2010 March 31, 2030 10 10 77
Grant 2 March 17,2014 March 31, 2030 10 . -
Grant 3 April 01, 2014 March 31, 2030 10 766 1,112
Grant 4 April 01,2015 March 31, 2030 10 781 812
Grant § April 01,2016 March 31, 2030 10 368 412
Grant 6 April 01,2017 March 31, 2030 10 593 617
Granl 7 December 01, 2017 March 31, 2030 10 194 194
Grant 8 April 01,2018 March 31, 2030 10 52 -
Total 2,764 3,224
Weighted Average remnining contraciual life of oplions 11 Years 12 Years

oulstanding at end of period

iii) Fair value of oplions granted

The fair value at grant date of oplions granted during the year ended March 31, 2019 was Rs 193,792 per option for Grant 8 (March 31,2018 ~ Rs 69,873 and Rs 116,783 for Grant 6 and Grant 7
respeclively) The fair value at grant dale is delermined using the Black Scholes Model which lakes into account the exercise price, the term of (he oplion, (he share price al grant date and expecled price
volalility of the underlying share, the expecled dividend yield and lhe risk free inlerest rale for the term of (he oplion

The model inputs for options granted during Lhe year ended March 31, 2019 included:

a) oplions are granled al lace value and vesl upon completion of service for a period not exceeding five years Vesled options are exercisable till March 31, 2030
b) exercise price: Rs 10 (March 31, 2018 - Rs 10)

¢) grant date: April 1, 2018 (March 31, 2018 - April |, 2017 and December I, 2017)

d) expiry date: Maich 31, 2030 (March 31, 2018 - March 31, 2030)

¢) expected price volatility of 1he company’s shares: 67 6% for Granl - 8 (March 31, 2018- 48 83% for Grant - 6 and 58 63% for Grant - 7)

1) expected dividend yield: 0% (March 31, 2018 — 0%)

) risk-liee interest rate: 7 83% {or Grant 8 (March 31, 2018 - 6 7% for Granl 6 and 7 1% for Granl 7)

The expected price volalility 1s based on the historic volatility (based on Ihe remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes Lo luture volatility due to publicly available informalion

Expense arising from share based payment (ransaction

Toral expenses arising from share-based payment transaclions recognised in profit or loss as parl of employee benefil expense were as follows:

March 31,2019 Mnarch 31,2018
Employee oplion plan azn 36594
Potal eanployee share based poayment expnse 323.72 365.94




Note 26: Earnings per share

Particulars

Basic and diluted

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders A
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B
Basic Earnings per share A/B

Diluted Earnings per share
Face value per share

The Company does not have any outstanding potential dilutive equity shares.

Year ended
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

(21,312.50)
477.74

(44.61)
(44.61)
10

(942.83)
432.99

(2.18)
(2.18)
10



Note 27: Related party transaclions
Disclosures in accordance wilh the requirements of IND AS - 24 on Related Party Disclosures, as identified by the management are set oul as below:

(a) Names of Related Parties and nature of relationship:
where control exists

Holding Company: Ctechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Key Management Personnel: Mr Yashish Dahiya, Director

Mr Alok Bansal, Director
Mr Manoj Sharma, Principal Officer & Whole Time Direclor

{b)Transactions with related parties
The followine transactions occurred with related parties:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Key Management Personnel*
Particulars Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Paisabazaar Marketing And
Private Limited Consulting Private Limited
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

| Subscription of 98.06.307 equily shares of Rs 10 each [Refer note 10(a)] 980.63 - - - - -
Securities Premium on subscription of 98.06.307 equity shares [Refer note 10(b)] 18.01937 - - - -

Loan received during the vear { Refer note 11(a)) 3.350.00 - - - - -

Interest acerued on loan (nel of TDS) {Refer note 11{b)} 11200 - - -
Cost charged back by Holding Company for sharing of resouices (Refer note 28) 45277 754 98
Cost charged to Holding/Fellow Subsidiary companies for sharing of resources
|a} Salarv Cost {Refer nole 16) - 1,512.15
b) Advertising and promotion expenses {Reler note 18} - 4,942 73 - - - -
Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) fees {Refer note 1 below) 1,551 54 - - - - -
Amount reimbursed to Holdine Company against expenses 306 = - - - -
Amount reimbursed from Holdine Companv for expenses 385 - - 897 - -
Eleclricily expenses naid on behalf of Holdine Company 9221
Security deposit paid on behalf of Holding Company 10.72 - - .= - -
Emplovee share-based pavment expense (Refer note 25(b)) EVERT) 36594 - -
Remuneration {Gross of tax) | . - 5545 62 33
) R ces as at vear end - . - T

vables (Refer note 11 (c)) 2096 11 S
s {Refer note 11 {a)) 3462 00 |-

Other fnancial assets {Reler note 6(N) - 1.754 07 - 8044 I _

Note | Expenditure curied by the Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited (“the Company™) on brand creation, advertisement and online marketing. till Maich 31, 2018 were borne by
the Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited ( “the Holding Company™) and the Company 1 the ratio of 60:40, respectively, as per the agreemcent with the Tlolding Company. as the Company
was in 1ts nitial phase and such expenses were primanily. aceretive Lo the enhancement and visibility of the brand names llowever. the Company has discontinued to share the expendituie incuired on
advertisement and online marketng with the Holdine company w e I April 01. 2018, as management has assessed that use of the brand names are now helping the Company drive exponential growth in
their busimess in a substantive manner and therelore. it1s prudent to absorb such expenses in its entirety witlin the Company Thus. no advertisement and promotion costs have been shared with the
Holding company during the year (March 31, 2018 Rs 4,942 73 lakhs)

Moreover. the biand names "Policybazaar” and "Policybuzaar com” are owned by Ilolding company Considering the fact that the Company was in ils initial years of operations (being business
development phase), the Holding company had not charged any fees towards usage of Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) till March 31, 2018 The operations of the Company have been considerably
scaled up during the year and have reached a reasonable size. such that benefits of using the biand names, are now providing impetus Lo the growth of the Company. rather than only enhancing the
visibility of the brand name owned by the Holding company Ilence, the Holding company has entered into an agreement with the company for an IPR lees @ 5% of the revenue of the Company w e [
Apnil 01, 2018

Nolte 2 Amounis are exclusive ol applicable taxes unless atherwise specified
*Mr Yashish Dahiva and Mr Alok Bansal do nol take any remuneration from Pohicybazaar Insmance Web Aewiepalor Private Limited
() Key management personnel compensation

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Short-term employee benelils 3228 3080
Post-cmployment benelis 961 700
Long-term employee benelits - -
Lermmation benelis - -
Fmplivee e bised poymens 1356 ) Sl
Vi cowppensation 5545 = 6234

Nole 28 : Dunng the yeinr Erechaces Marketna and Consultie Private Limned. the holding company shared some of the resources with the Company and have charged the
relevant cost bused on actual usage of 1esoumces by the Company . details of which are as under,
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2009 March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Cost chareed to Pohevbazaar Instnance Web Avgresator Private Limited. (net ol applicable taxes)
Rem 38892 089 87
63 85 0511
482,77 754.98

Fleetife iy wspiine




Note 29 : Fair value measurements

a) Financial instruments by category

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
FVTPL FVOCI Am:(;::“d FVTPL FVOCI  Amortised cost

Financial assets
Investments

- Mutual funds - - - 257.81 - -
Trade receivables - - 5,569.96 - - 3,357.86
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4,463.26 - 1,245.49
Other bank balances - - 426.59 - 25.00
Loans- Security deposits - - 572.61 - - 314.88
Employee Loans - - 15.79 - - 13.15
Unbilled revenue - - 359.22 - - 293.59
Amount recoverable from Holding company for - - - - - 1,754.07
expenses
Amount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary - - ) - 80.44
companies for expenses
Other financials assets - - 31.07 - 20.75
Total financial assets - - 11,438.50 257.81 - 7,105.23
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 3,350.00 - -
Trade payables - - 8,976.82 - 2,556.22
Employee related payables . - 1,805.20 - - 749.37
Lease equalisation reserve - - 78.98 - 20.05
Interest accrued - - 112.00 - -
Total financial liabilities - - 14,323.00 - 3.325.64

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An

cxplanation of cach level follows underneath the table.

b)  Fair value hicrarchy
Financial asscts measured at fair value ;

As at March 31,2019 Notes Level 1 Level 2
Financial assets

Financial Investments at IF'VTPL:

Investments in Mutval funds 6(b) . -

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Level 3 Total

Total financial assets - =

Assets and liabilitics which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asscts

Loans

Loans o employees 6(a) - - 15.79 15.79

Security deposits N B 6(a) - - 572.61 572.61

Total financial assets - - 588.40 588.40

Financial assets measured at fair value :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at Mareh 31,2018 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assels
Financial Investments at I'VTPL
Investments in Mutual funds 6(b) 25781 257 81
Total financial assels 257.81 257.81
LY w
W I'wav»,_.__




Asscts and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which Fair values are disclosed
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2018 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Loans

Loans to employees 6(a) - - 13.15 13.15
Security deposits 6(a) - - 314.88 314.88
Total financial assets - - 328.03 328.03

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, for example listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that
have quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair

value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. For example, unlisted equity
securities, etc.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

The company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or mutual fund houses quotes (NAV) for such instruments. This is included in Level 1.

- the fair value of the remaining financial instrument is determined vsing discounted cash flow analysis. This is included in Level 3

Fair valuce of financial asscts and liabilities measured at amortised cost

31-Mar-19 March 31,2018
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
Financial assets
Loans
Loans to employees 15.79 15.79 13.15 1315
Security deposits 572.61 572.61 314 88 314 88
Total financial asscts 588.40 588.40 328.03 328.03

The carrying amounts of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, borrowings. trade payables and other
financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature

IFor financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal 1o the fair values,
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Note 30 : Financial risk and Capital management

A)

(a)

Financial risk management framework

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit 1isk
This nole explans the sources of risk which the entity 1s exposed to and how the entity manages the risk

Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial
assets measured at amortised cost

Aging analysis

Diversification ol bank
deposils, credit limits
and letters of credit

Liquidity risk

Other financial liabilities

Rolling cash flow
forecasts

Availability of surplus
cash and support from
DOren ooy

Price Risk

Investments in mutual funds

Credit raling

Portfolio diversification
and regular monitoring

Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty lo a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables

from customers

Trade receivables related credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characterislics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
cuslomer base, including the default risk of the industry. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of
default is detenmined by considering the business environment in which Company operates and other macro-economic factors

Credit qualily of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, market intelligence and goodwill Oulstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored

The Company has eslablished an allowance for impairment that represents its expecled credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of
computation of expected credit loss for Lrade receivables and 12-month expected credit loss for other receivables An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
parties The calculation is based on historical data of actual losses The Company evaluates the concentration of risk wilh respect to lrade receivables as low

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery

Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Category

Basis for recognitiun of expected eredit loss provision

Deseription of category Security deposits

High quality assels,
nealigible credit nsk

12-month expecled credit
loss

Assels where the counler-party has
strong capacily to meel the
obligations and where the risk of
defaultis negligible or nil

Quality assets_ low credit
nsk

Assels where there 1s tow risk off
default and where the counter-
parly has sufficient capacity (o
mect Lthe obligations and where
there has been low frequency of’

defaults in Lhe past

Loans to employces

Trade receivables

12-month expected
credit loss

Year ended VMaveh 31,2019:

(a)

Partivnlnrs

[ oss allowance
measured ab 12 mouth
expected eredit losses

sxpected credit loss for security deposits & loans to employees:

Category Deseription of category

Assels where the
counterparly has strong

Ihgh quality assets, n capacily 1o meel the

oblications and where the
tisk of default s

credit tisk

neehaible or mil

Lifetime expected credit
losses

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

imated pross C ing amount
|.m e Expected probability of Expected > 'y." ELNNEH
Asset group carrying amount at X i net of impairment
default credit losses
defnult provision
Security deposits 57261 0 00% - 572 61
I oans (o employees 1579 0 00% 1579




{b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

of impairment)

. 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days More than 365 days Taotal

/Agcing b
Gross carrving amount 5438 58 92 40 3898 86 85 5.656 81
Expected loss rate 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 100%
Expected credit losses = - 8685 8685
(L05§ ‘nllowancc 86 85 36 85
provision)
Carrying amount of
trade reccivables (nct 5,438.58 92.40 38.98 - 5,569.96

Year ended March 31,2018:

(2) Expected credit loss for security deposits & loans to emplovees:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Category

Description of category

Asset group

Estimated gross
carrying amount at
default

Expected probability of
default

Expected
credit losses

Carrying amount
net ol impairment
provision

Loss allowance
measured at 12 month
expected credit losses

High quality assets, negligible

credit risk

(b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables unde

Assets where the
counterparty has strong
capacity to meet the
obligalions and where the
risk of defaull is
negligible or nil

Security deposits

31488

0.00%

31488

Loans to employees

1315

0.00%

13.15

r simplified approach:

(Amount in Rs. Lnlhs)

{of impairment)

Particulars/Ageing 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days More than 365 days Total
Gross cartving amount 3.31428 17 52 3066 5908 3.421.54
Expected loss rale 021% 8 90% 34 80% 75 56%
Expected credit losses 6 81 1 56 1067 44 64 63 68
(Los.s ﬂ]owance . 6368
provision)
Carrying amount of
trade reccivables (net 3,307.46 15.96 19.99 14.44 3,357.86

The following table summarizes the change in loss allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model

Rs. in Lakhs

April 1, 2018 32.26
Chonwes in loss ollowanee o - 3142
Loss allownnce on March 31, 2018 . 63068
Chinees i Joss allowpnee - pat 3 )
Loss allowance on March 31,2019 R85

Treasury related credit risk

Ciedit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks 1s imited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by external credit raling agencies.
accordingly the Company considers that the related ciedil risk 1s low Impanment on these items are measured on the F2-month expected credit loss basis




(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeling the obligations associated with its linancial liabilities thal are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufTicient liquidily to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation
The company’s treasury maintains Nexibility in funding by maintaining liquidity through investments in liquid funds Management monitors rolling lorecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash [lows

Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

0 to 1 year More than 1 year Total
March 31,2019
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 3.35000 - 3,350.00
Trade payables 8,976 82 - 8,976.82
Other financial liabilities 1,928 63 6755 1,996.18
Total non-derivative liabilities 14,255.45 67.55 14,323.00
March 31,2018
Non-derivatives
Borrowings . = :
Trade payables 2,556 22 2,556 22
Other financiat liabilities 749 84 1957 769 41
Total non-derivative liabilities 3,306.06 19.57 3,325.63

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investmenls held in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss To manage its price risk arising from such
investments, the Company diversifies ils portfolio Further Ihese are all debt base securities for which the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Quoles (NAV) of these investments are
available from the mutual fund houses

Profit for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on these securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss

B) Capital management
The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its abilily to continue as a going concem, so that they can continue to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The capital of the Company consist of equity capilal and accumulated profits




Note 31 : Contingent liabilities

The Company is in the process of evalualing the prior period impact of Supreme Court Judgment dated February 28, 2019 clarifying the
delinition of ‘basic wages’ as per Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (P.. Act) for the purpose of
determining contribution to Provident Fund under P.T. Act

Note 32 : Segment information

An operating segment is the one whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The Company has identified its Principal otficer and Whole-time
Director as its chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Company's business activities fall within a single business segment as the
Company is a licensed Insurance web aggregator engaged in the business of rendering "Insurance Web Aggregator" services under IRDAI
(Web aggregator) Regulations. The chief operating decision maker reviews the performance of business on an overall basis. As the Company
has a single reportable segment, the segment wise disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 on Operating segment is not applicable

The revenues of Rs. 12,805 58 Lakhs (March 31,2018 - Rs. 3,255.84 Lakhs from single external customer) are derived trom three individual
external customers

Note 33 : Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance along with the financial
position of the Company, its projected cash flows and letter of support provided by Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited have
been reviewed by the Board of Directors and they have a reasonable expeclation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the Company has continued to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements

Note 34 : New and amended IND AS standards

a) Ind AS 116, Leases:

Ministry of Corporate Aftairs (MCA) has issued the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 on March 30,
2019 notitying new standard IND AS 116 "Leases". This Ind AS is applicable for annual period beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The
Company is in the process of evaluating Ind AS 116 and expecting that there will be no material impact on the financial statements resulting
from implementation of this standard

b) Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Income Taxes', in connection with
accounting for taxes on dividend, The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, olher comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. Eftective date
of application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or alter April 01. 2019 The Company is in the process of evaluating this
amendment to Ind AS 12 and expecting (hat the said amendment will not have any impact on the inancial statements of the Company
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Nolte 35: Information Pursuant to Regulation 22 (a) of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Insurance Web

Aggregators) Regulations, 2017. (Also refer note 14)

A. Details of incomes received frrom insurers and insurer's group companices by Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Insurer/Insurer’s Group Company

Type of Service

Year ended
March 31,2019

Year ended
March 31,2018

Aditva Birla Health Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 23178 8610
Adilva Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited Oulsourcing 6050 -
Aegon Religare Life Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 1.12 213
Aegon Religare Lile Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 932 50 1.383.00
Apollo Munich Health [nsurance Company Limited I'elemarketing 647.52 29030
Apollo Munich Health [nsurance Company Limited Rewards 19426 -
Baijaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 425 56 303.54
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 10.00 10.00
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 3.745 35 1,578 60
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited Product Listing 5.00 -
Bharti Axa General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 281.74 189.39
Bharti Axa General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 53.62 16.07
Bharti AXA Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 62.00 -
Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited Product Listing 1.50 1.00
Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 199 50 105 85
Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 044 -
Cigna TTK Health Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 31147 183.15
Cigna TTK Health Insurance Company Limited Rewards 93 44 -
DHFL General Insurance Limited Telemarketing 5850
DHFL General Insurance Limited Rewards 417
DHFL Pramerica Life Insurance Company Limited Product Listing 0.50 -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 316.00 179.50
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 1127 -
Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 251.00 66.53
Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited Rewards 47 64 5.93
Future Generali India Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing - 25.20
Future Generali India Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing - 8 80
Go Digit General Insurance Limited Telemarketing 243 89 15.12
Go Digit General Insurance Limited Rewards 5826 449
HDIFC ERGO General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 1.246 99 801 34
HDIC ERGO General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 374 33 23261
HDFC General Insurance Limited Telemarketing - 28.79
1IDFC Standard Lifte Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 5.128 86 325584
ICIC| Lombard General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 127 80 11.66
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 24 00 040
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 72276 60.72
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 1.500.00 80600
ICICI Prudential Lile Insurance Company Limited Rewards 143 97 -
|DB! Federal Lile Inswance Company Limited Outsourcing . 6.65
I1Tco Tokio General Insurance Company Limiled Telemarkceting 53506 92.56
Iffco Tokio General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 151 83 443
Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 169 32 136.70
Kotak Mahindia General Insurance Company Limited Rewards ] 2074
Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 76 00 -
Liberty Videocon General Insurance Company Limited Telemarkeling 4983 5538
Libertly Videoacon General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 1341 264
Magma 11DI General Insurance Company Limited Telemarkeling 1937 183
Magma HDI General Insurance Company Limiled Rewards 577 055
Max Bupa Ilealth Insurance Company Limiled Telemarkeling 545 69 276 78
Max Lile Insurance Company Limited ‘Telemarketing 1.56597 | 31083
Max Lile Insurance Company Limited Oulsourcing 2.360 40 83130
National Insurance Company Limited I'clemarkeling 259 37 6402
National Insurance Company Limited Rewards 7338 18 94
New [ndia Assurance Company Limited Telemarketing 34875 21665
New India Assurance Company Limited Rewards 100 99 64 99
Rabeja OBE General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing B 208 -
Rehance General Insurance Company Limited 'elemarketing 276 08 14149
Rehiance General [nsurance Company Limited Rewards 3287 -
Religare Health Insurance Company Limiled Telemarkeling 1.113 40 802 17
Rehgane Health Insurance Company Limited Rewards 599 95 134 65
Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Company | imited lelemarkeling 51579 | 32509 |
Rovil Sundatam Alliance Inswuance Company | imited Rewards 2578 -
Telemarkeling 07

SBI General Insurance Company Limiled




(Rs. in Lakhs)

Insurer/Insurer's Group Company Type of Service Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited Product Listing 2.50 2.50
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited Telemarkeling 17.96 -
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 238.80 =
Shriram General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 11890 12.41
Shriram General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 35.67 3.72
Star Health & Allied Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 867.45 54023
TATA AlA Life Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 684.30 108.68
TATA AIA Life Insurance Company Limited Rewards 122.98 -
TATA AIA Life Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing, 50000 -
TATA AlG General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 382 88 211.53
TATA AIG General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 114.89 64.48
The Oriental Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 461.23 586.42
The Oriental Insurance Company Limited Rewards 20028 11320
United India Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 38345 375.62
United India Insurance Company Limited Rewards 112.94 113.20
Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited Telemarketing 287.63 183.27
Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited Rewards 85.96 54,98
Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited Outsourcing 54.00 -
Total 31,030.87 15,831.27




B. Details of payments received by the group p

and/or iat

of the Policybazaar Insurance Web Aggregator Private Limited:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Insurer/Insurer's Group Company

Type of Service

Year ended
March 31,2019

Year ended March
31,2018

Service Entity

Nature of Relationship with
Policybazaar Insurance Web

Aggregator Private Limited

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited

Banner Ad

103.49

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

5036

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Bharti Axa General Insurance Company Limited

Banner Ad

9.28

30,98

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and

Bharti Axa General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

54,33

24,16

Holding Company

Consulting Private Limited

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Bharti Axa Life Insurance Company Limited

Banner Ad

226

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Bharti Axa Life Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

257.37

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Cigna TTK Health Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

65.66

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Exide Life Insurance Company Limited

IT Service

63.45

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited

Banner Ad

299

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

HDFC ERGO General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

104.76

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

HDFC General Insurance Limited

Banner Ad

62,15

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

HDFC General Insurance Limited

Emailers

41.75

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Kotak Mahmdra General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

10.87

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Liberty Videocon General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

11.94

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Max Bupa Health Insurance Co. Ltd

Emailers

59.33

Holding Company

Paisabazaar Marketing and

Consulting Private Limited

PNB Metlife Insurance Company Limited

IT Service

8424

76.68

Fellow Subsidiary

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

36.24

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

TATA AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

195.02

Holding Company

Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Cigna TTK Health Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

526.45

Holding Company

Paisabazaar Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Iffeo Tokio General Insurance Company Limited

Advertisment

3.66

Fellow Subsidiary

Paisabazaar Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Iifeo Tokio General Insurance Company Limited

Marketing

Fellow Subsidiary

Paisabazaar Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Company Limited

Emailers

545.89

Fellow Subsidiary

Paisabazaar Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited

Total

1,003.48

Fellow Subsidiary

Note 36: Events occurring after the reporting perlod

(a) The Company has, subsequent to the year end, increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 5,500 lakhs to Rs. 7,
Further the Company has issued 18,86,792 equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 each at a

Marketing and Consulting Private Limited.

(b) Approval of financial statements - The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 15, 2019,
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,500 lakhs divided into 75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each on May 10, 2019,
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